
 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Agenda - Monday, March 18, 2019 - 6:00 PM 

 
 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance given by Director Terri Peavy 

CONSENT 

1. Approval of the minutes of the rescheduled regular meeting March 4, 2019. (CCD) 

2. Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to purchase a Crew Cab ¾ Ton Truck for 

the Public Works Department Streets Division. (PWD) 

REGULAR 

3. Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to submit a Section 108 Loan Application 

to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for the rehabilitation of 

the old Boys and Girls Club. (Sponsored by Director Terri Peavy) (PWD) Assistant Public 

Works Director Tracie Lee 

4. Adopt an Ordinance authorizing and directing the City Manager to purchase police mobile 

video and audio equipment. (TAPD) Chief Bob Harrison 

This ordinance requires an emergency clause due to time constraints to place order to 

receive additional equipment at no charge.  An emergency clause requires a separate and 

distinct vote of the Board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the 

Board. (Hdbk. Const. Amend 7) 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

NEXT MEETING DATE: Monday, April 1, 2019 

ADJOURN 

2019 City Calendar 

Rockabilly Returns - Saturday, March 30, 2019 

Jewell House Tribute - Saturday, April 13, 2019 

Ratha Yatra Festival - Saturday, May 4, 2019 

9th Annual RailFest - Saturday, May 11, 2019 

Sparks in the Park - Saturday, June 29, 2019 

1



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Approval of the minutes of the rescheduled regular meeting March 4, 

2019. (CCD) 

AGENDA DATE: 03/18/2019 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Minutes 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Approval of meeting minutes. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Approval of meeting minutes. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Clerk recommends approval. 

EXHIBITS: Meeting minutes. 

 

2



 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Minutes - Monday, March 04, 2019 - 6:00 PM 

 
 

Mayor Allen Brown called the meeting order. 

PRESENT: Mayor Allen Brown, Ward 1 Assistant Mayor Linda Teeters, Ward 2 

       Director Laney J. Harris, Ward 3 Director Steven Hollibush, Ward 4 Director Travis Odom, 

Ward 5 Director Barbara S. Miner, and Ward 6 Director Terri Peavy. 

 

ALSO PRESENT: City Manager Dr. Kenny Haskin, City Attorney George Matteson, City 

Clerk Heather Soyars and Deputy City Clerk Jenny Narens. 

 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance given by Director Barbara S. Miner. 

PRESENTATION(S) 

1. Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service Awards.  

Mayor Brown presented an award and city pin to Daniel L. Thiels for five years of service 

and William J. Smith, Jr., for twenty years of service with the Texarkana, Arkansas Fire 

Department (TAFD). 

The following employees were not present at the meeting and will receive their awards and 

pins: Nathan L. Reeves for fifteen years of service and Kenneth Wilson for twenty years of 

service with TAFD; Amy Payne and Roderick Howard both for fifteen years of service with 

Texarkana Water Utilities. 

Mayor Brown thanked them and all City employees for their service to the City and the 

community. 

2. Presentation of Texarkana Arkansas Police Department Officer Recognition for Richard 

Conkleton and Dylan McCrary.  

 Chief Bob Harrison acknowledged Officers Richard Conkleton and Dylan McCrary.  He 

said these two officers were heading to Camden, Arkansas, for their graduation ceremony 

and Sergeant Rick Cockrelle witnessed their heroic efforts.  

 Sergeant Rick Cockrelle said he was also driving to the graduation ceremony when he saw a 

vehicle stopped on the side of the road with flashers on, this vehicle was driven by Officer 

Conkleton and Officer McCrary.  Sergeant Cockrelle said there was a car in a culvert upside 

down with water and mud rushing into it.  He said one officer was helping the lady out of 

the car and up the hill and the other officer went up the road to get cell service in order to 

call for help.  Sergeant Cockrelle said these two officers went above and beyond before they 

even graduated the academy.  He said they both made it to the graduation ceremony on time.         

3



 

 Chief Harrison, Mayor Brown, and Dr. Haskin presented plaques and city pins to Officer 

Conkleton and Officer McCrary for their heroism.   

CONSENT 

Director Harris requested Consent Agenda Item 4. Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City 

Manager to purchase a Tandem Vibratory Roller for the Public Works Department Streets 

Division. (PWD), be removed from the Consent Agenda for further discussion. 

 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda made by Assistant Mayor Teeters, Seconded by Director 

Odom. 

 

The motion carried unanimously, and the Mayor declared the Consent Agenda approved.  The  

items approved were: 

3. Approval of the minutes of the rescheduled regular meeting February 19, 2019. (CCD) 

REGULAR 

4. Resolution No. 2019-11 authorizes the City Manager to purchase a Tandem Vibratory Roller 

for the Public Works Department Streets Division. (PWD) 

 Director Harris said he wanted to know the size of the roller.  He said he asked because he 

wondered if the City could use a small roller to roll over the small pot holes.   

 Mayor Brown said the roller Pubic Works was purposing weighed 6500 lbs., 105 inches in 

length and 4 feet wide.  He thought it looked like a big roller.   

 Director Harris said he thought it would be a good idea if the City invested in a small roller.     

Motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Harris, Seconded by Director Hollibush. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, 

Director Odom, Director Miner, Director Peavy. 

 

5. Ordinance No. 6-2019 amends Ordinance No. 4-2018 and approves Personnel Policy 

Amendments. (FIN)  

 Finance Director TyRhonda Henderson said this ordinance proposes adoption of 

amendments to section 4.02 of the Personnel Policy.  She said removing statements 

referencing employees hired before/after April 18, 1983, would simplify the policy and 

exclude unnecessary language.  Ms. Henderson said revising the policy would bring it into 

compliance with state statute 14-53-108 uniform sick leave for Municipal Fire Departments. 

This would allow firefighters working 24-hour shifts to accumulate 2,160 hours of sick 

leave. Which was the maximum allowed by state statute.  She said section 4.02, Sick Leave 

(B) Accumulation will read: “All regular full-time employees may accumulate a maximum 

of ninety (90) days of sick leave. For firefighters working 24-hour shifts, ninety (90) days is 

defined as 2,160 hours. For all other full-time employees, ninety (90) days is defined as 720 

hours. Sick leave accrual will cease for any employee with sick leave accumulation in 

excess of the ninety (90) days maximum until such time as sick leave accumulation falls 

below the maximum. Sick leave accrual will continue for any employee with sick leave 

4



 

accumulation below the ninety (90) days maximum until such time as the sick leave 

accumulation reaches the maximum.” 

 Director Harris asked when the last time employees were paid.  

 Finance Director TyRhonda Henderson said it was Friday. 

 Director Harris asked if the employees accrued any sick time.  

 Finance Director TyRhonda Henderson said yes, no changes had been made to the policy 

yet. 

 Director Harris said he understood the workshop had a different policy than the policy 

tonight.   

 Mayor Brown said there was a difference in the Personnel Policy and the sick leave accrual.  

He said the City was not following the state statute at the present time.  Mayor Brown said 

the mistake at the workshop was he did not distribute any proposal to the Board prior to the 

workshop.  He said the workshop was a working workshop to discuss what the Board would 

consider to do moving forward. 

 Director Harris asked if this were going to cause issues with sick leave. 

 Mayor Brown said no he did not think there would be any problems.  He said the real issue 

was the overtime, not employees using sick leave.      

 Director Harris asked if this had anything to do with not getting a second for an agenda item. 

 Mayor Brown said no because there was not a proposal brought forward.   

Motion to read the ordinance the first time in abbreviated form made by Director Harris, 

Seconded by Director Miner. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, 

Director Odom, Director Miner, Director Peavy. 

The motion carried 7-0.  The ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated 

form made by Director Harris, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Teeters. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, 

Director Odom, Director Miner, Director Peavy.   

The motion carried 7-0.  The ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to further suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in 

abbreviated form made by Director Harris, Seconded by Director Miner. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, 

Director Odom, Director Miner, Director Peavy. 

The motion carried 7-0.  The ordinance was read the third and final time in abbreviated 

form. 

Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Miner, Seconded by Assistant Mayor 

Teeters. 

5



 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, 

Director Odom, Director Miner, Director Peavy. 

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was adopted. 

The applicant requests an emergency clause.  An emergency clause requires a separate and 

distinct vote of the board and was valid only if there were a two-thirds vote of approval by 

the board. (Hdbk. Const. Amend 7) 

Motion to approve the emergency clause made by Assistant Mayor Teeters, Seconded by 

Director Miner. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, 

Director Odom, Director Miner, Director Peavy. 

The emergency clause was adopted 7-0. 

 

6. Ordinance No. 7-2019 amends the Zoning Chapter of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, Code 

of Ordinances regarding wrecking services. (PWD-Planning)  

 City Planner Mary Beck said she was there to represent the Planning Commission and 

request amendments to Ordinance No. K-286 regarding wrecking services.  She said the 

Planning Commission held four workshops and a public hearing that resulted in the 

ordinance brought before the Board.  She said the revisions agreed upon by unanimous vote 

were: (1) a conditional use permit for a stand-alone wrecking service in a C-3 Open Display 

Commercial zone from a use by right, (2) to add “stand alone” to the definition of a wrecker 

service as given in Article VI, 28-23 to read:  A wrecker service was a stand-alone business 

enterprise from which wrecker vehicles were dispatched, and may or may not include the 

temporary storage of inoperable or wrecked vehicles, (3)  to distinguish a wrecking service 

from a salvage yard or junkyard as a use by right in all industrial zones, (4)  automotive 

wrecking service supplemental provisions have the thirty day storage language removed. 

 Planning Commissioner Boots Thomas said this ordinance was to help keep the zoning 

codes up to date.  Mr. Thomas said the question everyone asked was the difference between 

a wrecker service and a wrecking yard.  He said wrecker service picks up the car from an 

accident or a tow and brings it to a storage yard where it was kept, and a wrecking yard was 

where dead cars went to be pieced up, parted out, and then crushed down and taken to Tri-

State Metal.  Mr. Thomas said giving the Planning Commission the right to have a case by 

case study of the wrecking yard permits, they could place restrictions or potentially turn the 

permit down.  

 Director Miner asked if they were required to go before to the Planning Commission to 

receive a license. 

 Planning Commissioner Boots Thomas said wrecking services were a use by right and it 

would be amending to be a conditional use.         

 Mayor Brown said having this ordinance approved if the Planning Commission denied the 

permit there would be an appeal process and it would come before the Board for a vote to 

approve or not to approve.   

6



 

 City Planner Mary Beck said the Planning Commission wanted to promote businesses and 

make sure everyone’s rights had an opportunity.   

Motion to read the ordinance the first time in abbreviated form made by Director Odom, 

Seconded by Director Hollibush. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, 

Director Odom, Director Miner, Director Peavy. 

The motion carried 7-0.  The ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated 

form made by Director Miner, Seconded by Director Odom. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, 

Director Odom, Director Miner, Director Peavy.   

The motion carried 7-0.  The ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

Director Harris asked if there were a notice given from the Planning Commission when this 

issue was first brought up.  

Mayor Brown said yes. 

Motion to further suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in 

abbreviated form made by Assistant Mayor Teeters, Seconded by Director Peavy. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, 

Director Odom, Director Miner, Director Peavy. 

The motion carried 7-0.  The ordinance was read the third and final time in abbreviated 

form. 

Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Odom, Seconded by Director Miner. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, 

Director Odom, Director Miner, Director Peavy. 

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was adopted. 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION – No one came forward. 

ADJOURN 

Motion to adjourn made by Director Odom, Seconded by Director Hollibush. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, 

Director Odom, Director Miner, Director Peavy. 

The meeting adjourned at 6:41 PM. 

APPROVAL of the minutes on this 18
th

 day of March, 2019. 

 

________________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

7



 

_____________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

8



 

  

9



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to purchase a Crew 

Cab ¾ Ton Truck for the Public Works Department Streets Division. 

(PWD) 

AGENDA DATE: 03/04/2019 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works Department 

PREPARED BY: Tracie Lee, Assistant Public Works Director 

REQUEST: Purchase a Crew Cab ¾ Ton Truck for the Public Works Department 

Streets Division. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: This item will be approved by a resolution; therefore, it will not need an 

emergency clause. 

SUMMARY: The Public Works Department would like to purchase a Crew Cab ¾ 

Ton Truck for the Public Works Department Streets Division in the 

amount of $34,203.00 from McClarty Ford.   

Staff chose the next lowest bid due to Coleman Motors, Inc. inability to 

provide the vehicle quoted in their bid proposal.  Bid was advertised in 

January 6
th

 and 13
th

, 2019 legal section of the Texarkana Gazette. 

Purchase from this source meets all bidding requirements. Funds were 

budgeted and are available for the purchase of this vehicle in the Streets 

Capital Outlay Fund. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $34,203.00 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $34,203.00 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$0.00 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution, Bid Ad, Bid from Coleman Motors, Inc. and Bid from 

McClarty Ford. 

 

 

  

 

10



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to advertisement by the Public Works Department, a low 

bid was submitted by McClarty Ford for one (1) Crew Cab ¾ Ton Truck in the amount of 

$34,203.00; (the actual lowest bidder being unexpectedly unable to perform and, thus, 

McClarty Ford, as the second lowest bidder is deemed the lowest responsible bidder); and 

WHEREAS, the funding for the purchase is budgeted and will come from Streets 

Capital Outlay Fund; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager and staff recommend approval. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the 

City of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the City Manager is authorized and directed to enter 

into a contract with McClarty Ford in the amount and for the purposes set forth above 

with funding from the sources so indicated.   

PASSED AND APPROVED this 18
th

 day of March, 2019. 

 

_____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

George M. Matteson, City Attorney 

 

 
  

 

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to submit a Section 

108 Loan Application to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 

Development (HUD) for the rehabilitation of the old Boys and Girls 

Club. (Sponsored by Director Terri Peavy) (PWD) Assistant Public 

Works Director Tracie Lee 

AGENDA DATE: 03/18/2019 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works Department 

PREPARED BY: Tracie Lee, Assistant Public Works Director 

REQUEST: To submit a Section 108 Loan Application to the U.S. Department of 

HUD. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: This item will be approved by a resolution; therefore, it will not need an 

emergency clause. 

SUMMARY: The Public Works Department would like to submit a Section 108 Loan 

application to the U.S. Department of HUD in the amount of $884,871 

for the rehabilitation of the old Boys and Girls Club. Restoration of the 

facility will provide youth, adult and senior recreational services to our 

citizens.   

The existing building that was formerly known as the Boys and Girls 

Club has set dormant for several years.  Due to City budget constraints 

the City has been unsuccessful in restoring the building to its former use.  

By applying for a Section 108 Loan the City will be able to utilize a 

portion of its annual entitlement to pay the loan.   

If for some reason the federal government were to dissolve the CDBG 

program the payment of the loan will be budgeted in the Public Works 

budget in the Parks Division capital outlay line item.  

The City is requesting a 20-Year loan term, with total annual debt 

service of approximately $30,000 to $50,000.  The loan carries a 3% 

interest rate. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $0.00 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $0.00 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$0.00 

32



RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution. Letter to the Board, HUD Regional Office Review Letter 

and Section 108 Loan Proposal. 

 

 

33



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department would like to submit a Section 108 

Loan application to the U.S. Department of HUD for the purpose of acquiring funds for 

the rehabilitation of the former Boys and Girls Club building in the amount of 

$884,871.00; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager and staff recommend Board approval; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

City of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to 

enter into a Section 108 Loan application, under the terms set forth above. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 18
th

 day of March, 2019. 

  

  

_____________________________ 

                          Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

________________________________ 

George M. Matteson, City Attorney 

 

 

34



35



36



1 | P a g e  

 

 
 
 
 

 

CDBG Section 108 Loan Proposal 

to  

Housing & Urban Development 

for  

Rehabilitation of Texarkana Recreation Facility 

 
 

Prepared by: 

 Tracie Lee, Assistant Director of Public Works  

37



2 | P a g e  

 

Section 108 Pre-submission and Citizen Participation 

Requirements 

Proposed Activity 

The City of Texarkana is proposing to utilize Section 108 Loan Funds in the amount of $884,871 to 

rehabilitate the existing Boys and Girls Club facility to provide youth, adult and senior recreational 

services to our citizens.  Recreation and park services are widely believed to be an economic catalyst for 

the community.  For example, numerous programs, facilities and events offered by park and recreation 

agencies have become tools to generate revenue within the community.  Sport tourism (i.e., traveling to 

another place to engage in or watch sport) have a powerful economic impact on communities.  Local 

residents and businesses are likely to support investment in parks and recreation if they see economic 

benefits from these investments. 

City staff believe this proposed activity will focus on the four priorities of the City. 

• Creation of indoor space geographically located to meet unmet needs of the community. 

• Improvement to safety and playability of existing field playing surfaces. 

• Improve availability and condition of community parks, trails, and neighborhood parks. 

• Development of new indoor sports facility. 

The existing building that was formerly known as the Boys and Girls Club has set dormant for several 

years.  Due to City budget constraints the City has been unsuccessful in restoring the building to its 

former use.   

National Objective 

Section 101(c) of the authorizing statute sets forth the primary objective of the program as the 

development of viable communities by the provision of decent housing and a suitable living 

environment and expanding economic opportunities, principally for persons of low and moderate 

income.  The statute further states that this is to be achieved in the CDBG program by ensuring that 

each funded activity meets one of three named national objectives.  Those three objectives are 

identified as: benefiting low- and moderate-income persons; preventing or eliminating slums or blight; 

and meeting urgent needs. The statute also states that each grantee must ensure that at least 70% of its 

expenditures over a particular time period must be used for activities qualifying under the first of those 

national objectives (that of benefiting low- and moderate-income persons.) 

This proposed project will meet two of the national objectives: 

1. Benefit low and moderate-income persons  

2. Meet other community development needs having a particular urgency because existing 

conditions pose a serious and immediate threat to the health or welfare of the community and 

other financial resources are not available to meet such needs.  

The project will benefit low and moderate-income persons because it is located in Census Tract 204 a 

low to moderate income area (LMA) with 69.9% low to moderate citizens as well as partnering with the 

38



3 | P a g e  

 

Texarkana Arkansas Police Department’s Pride Academy and other Non-Profit organizations that serve 

70 to 90 percent low to moderate income persons. 

Today’s youth face challenges and opportunities very different from those of past generations.  

Supporting the healthy growth and development of youth, as well as providing them with the services 

and experiences they need to mature into productive adults, are growing concerns in many 

communities nationwide.  Pressure to raise student achievement, the need for safe and enriching 

environments for youth during out-of-school time, a focus on building the skills and competencies of 

young people, and an emphasis on preventing risky behaviors are all fueling the demand for quality 

youth programs.  In Texarkana and other communities, however, leaders find it difficult to identify and 

coordinate adequate funding for youth programs as well as to access resources to enhance program 

capacity and quality. 

This project will meet other community development needs having a particular urgency because existing 

conditions pose a serious and immediate threat to the health or welfare of the community and other 

financial resources are not available to meet such needs by providing a safe and enriching environment 

for youth during out-of-school time, with a focus on building their skills and competencies and hopefully 

prevent risky behaviors that may lead them down the wrong path in life. 

Security Pledge per CFR 24 570.705(b)(2) 

The City is requesting a 20-year loan term, with total annual debt service of approximately $30,000 to 

$50,000.  To assure the repayment of debt obligations and the charges incurred under 570.705(g) the 

City of Texarkana, Arkansas pledges $30-50,000 of its Annual CDBG Entitlement Grant (Public Facilities 

Improvements) until obligation is met.  As the project is a public facility project the use of these funds to 

pay the Section 108 Loan is authorized in the City’s Five-Year Consolidated Plan submitted to and 

approved by HUD. If for some reason the CDBG Program is dissolved by the U.S. Department of HUD, 

the City pledges to allocate tax dollars in the amount of $30-50,000 annually in the Parks Division 

budget.  If additional collateral is required the city further pledges the property the building sits on to 

include three ball fields, a soccer field, a parking lot and a space for a future football field adjacent to Nix 

Creek in front of the existing building as collateral for the loan. (See Exhibit “A”) 

Citizen Participation Opportunities 

Three Public Hearings were held and advertised in the Texarkana Gazette for the City’s 2018-2022 Five 

Year Consolidated Plan (which included park improvements) as written below.   

CITY OF TEXARKANA 
FY 2019 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM 

FIVE YEAR CONSOLIDATED PLAN ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

The City of Texarkana, Arkansas ANTICIPATES that the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 

Development will allocate Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds in an amount of 

$249,551.00.  Agencies, organizations, public institutions and all citizens are invited to attend public 

hearings for the intent of providing input for budgeting of expenditures of funds administered by the 

39



4 | P a g e  

 

Public Works Department 2018 Annual Action Plan.  You may also bring recommendations to the Public 

Works Office Monday-Friday, 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. in Texarkana, Arkansas, City Hall Lower level. 

Three (3) public hearings are scheduled at the following times and locations: 

Wednesday, June 13, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. Iron Mountain Neighborhood Center, 1101 Couch Street, 

Texarkana, Arkansas 

Wednesday, June 13, 2018 at 11:00 a.m. Arkansas City Hall, 216 Walnut Street, Texarkana, Arkansas 

Thursday, June 14, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. College Hill Center, 1002 Ferguson Street, Texarkana, Arkansas 

Technical questions regarding eligible CDBG activities should be directed to Tracie Lee, Assistant Director 

of Public Works at (870) 779-1354. 

Public input suggests that Texarkana citizens would like to see more diverse programs in the outlying 

areas of the City as it relates to youth and senior citizens.  There is a demand for more programs that 

meet the diverse and changing interests of the community as indicated from the surveys provided.   

Publication of the Proposed Application Community Wide and Solicitation of Comments 

The City’s plan to apply for a Section 108 Loan to either rehabilitate the existing facility or demolish and 

build a new recreational facility was posted in the Texarkana Gazette on Sunday July 22, 2018.  A draft 

copy of the proposal was posted on the City’s webpage and Facebook page. Citizens were advised to 

submit their comments to Ms. Tracie Lee, Assistant Director of Public Works at 216 Walnut Street, 

Texarkana, Arkansas 71854. 

 

40



5 | P a g e  

 

 

City Facebook Page (Notification and Link to Proposal) 

 

 

41



6 | P a g e  

 

 

City Webpage (Home Page Public Notification) 

 

 

42



7 | P a g e  

 

 

City  Webpage (Proposal Page and Link to full docment)

43



8 | P a g e  

 

Recreation Center Business Plan 

Summary 

Currently the City’s Parks and Recreation Division have a primary emphasis on hands-on discovery 

learning through free spontaneous play but can also incorporate some elements of pure entertainment. 

Most adults don't fully understand and appreciate the value of spontaneous play to the social, physical, 

mental, and emotional development of their children.  This communicates to the parents that their 

children will learn by visiting them. Therefore, the parents show up with their children because it's good 

for them, and the children show up because it's just plain fun. The proposed Texarkana Recreational 

Facility will provide high-level Play Care, Edutainment and Customer Service in the following categories: 

• Sport Activities (i.e. soccer, basketball, softball, future football) 

• Educational play with learning 

• Children's activities 

• Senior activities 

• Event Space for Birthday parties 

• Special events 

• Special requests (i.e. tournament hosting) 

• Convenient hours of operation 

What will set Texarkana Recreational Facility apart from the competition is the commitment to provide 

all these services in one convenient location and the ability to partner with other facilities to hold a city-

wide tournament venue that will bring tourists into our city. 

2.1 Start-up Summary 

The City will rehabilitate an existing structure or construct a new structure. Start-up costs will cover a 

number of details to convert/design the structure to suit the City's concept both visually and 

functionally.  Included in start-up costs are all the necessary expenditures to cover the pre-opening, 

hiring, staff training, addition and revision of equipment needs, supplying toys, soft play equipment, 

inventory, and other essentials. 

Long-term assets represent the value of the building and the land on which it sits. The City anticipates 

the renovations to cost approximately $814,500. Renovations are expensed as indicated. 

Start-up Requirements  

Start-up Expenses   
Legal Fees      $9,300   

Insurance      $7,800   

Security     $2,500   

Computer - Administrative    $4,000   

Marketing and marketing strategy   $6,500   

Architect/Remodeling     $835,421   

Equipment (i.e. toys)     $8,000   

44



9 | P a g e  

 

Projector & Screen     $2,200  

TVs & video game consoles    $3,250   

Computers - Learning     $4,000   

Cleaning supplies     $900   

Office Supplies      $1,000   

Total Start-up Expenses    $884,871   

Start-up Assets   
Cash Required  - Staffing   $65,000 

Start-up Inventory     $1,000   

Other Current Assets     $2,500   

Long-term Assets     $514,000   

Total Assets      $582,500   

Total Requirements     $1,467,371   

Products and Services 

The facility will set itself apart from other recreational facilities that may offer only one or two types of 

services. Parents desire these services and are frustrated because they must go to several different 

businesses or travel long distances to find these types of activities. The focus of the recreation center is 

youth services and activities. The services provided will be exemplary.  

The business atmosphere will be clean, friendly and upscale where customers will be comfortable 

leaving their children. We will offer a personal touch, fun innovative learning through play, and a 

memorable hassle-free place to host events. 

Texarkana Recreational Facility Activities for kids offers:  

• Movie Night 

• Staff-led Group activities 

• Theme Nights 

• Art and crafts 

• Karaoke stage 

• Computer Games 

• PlayStation 2, Xbox, GameCube 

• Educational toys and manipulatives 

• Basketball League & Tournaments 

• Softball League & Tournaments 

• Soccer League & Tournaments 

• Event Space for Birthday Parties and Other Special Events 

Texarkana Recreational Facility Rates (Drop-in) 

$7.50 per Hour - One Child (5 years and older) 

$4.00 per Hour - Each Additional Sibling 

 

45



10 | P a g e  

 

Membership 

$30 Annual Family Registration 

Family Savings Plan Parents may pre-pay for a discount: 

$110 = $100 (10% DISCOUNT) per child 1 League (Softball, Basketball, Soccer, etc.) 

$230 = $200 (15% DISCOUNT) per child 2 Leagues (Softball, Basketball, Soccer, etc.) 

$360 = $300 (20% DISCOUNT) per child 3 Leagues (Softball, Basketball, Soccer, etc.) 

Pre-pay fees includes access to facility activities. 

Reduced Fees for Low to Moderate Clientele 

In order to meet the national objective as it relates to low to moderate income persons fees will be 

reduced based on the Section 8 Income limits.  Participates will need to apply by submitting an 

application for reduced fee with proof of income and household size.  Fees will be reduced as indicated 

below. 

 

• Texarkana Recreational Facility Rates (Drop-in) 

o $3.75 per Hour - One Child (5 years and older) 

o $2.00 per Hour - Each Additional Sibling 

• Membership 

o $15.00 Annual Family Registration 

• Family Savings Plan Parents may pre-pay for a discount: 

o $110 = $38.50 (65% DISCOUNT) per child 1 League (Softball, Basketball, Soccer, etc.) 

o $230 = $69 (70% DISCOUNT) per child 2 Leagues (Softball, Basketball, Soccer, etc.) 

o $360 = $90 (75% DISCOUNT) per child 3 Leagues (Softball, Basketball, Soccer, etc.) 

• Pre-pay fees includes access to facility activities. 

 

Referral Program 

Refer a friend who has never been to Texarkana Recreational Facility and receive $5 OFF the price of a 

new membership.  

4.1 Target Market Segment Strategy 

Our success will be based on our ability to become known within the community and how affordable the 

programs are. We must focus on the specific market segments whose needs match our offerings. 

Focusing on targeted segments is the key to our future. Therefore, the focus and marketing message will 

be the services offered. Once the message is developed, it will be communicated and fulfilled. 

Stay at Home Moms and Dads 

For a variety of reasons, stay-at-home Moms and Dads are an attractive segment. Parents are looking 

for a place to take their children to play and learn. The market segment customers will lead a lifestyle in 

which their children play a large part in their lives.  

46



11 | P a g e  

 

Elementary Schools 

Parks and Recreation will establish a relationship with the local elementary schools; there are 20 

elementary schools in this target area, for possible field trips. The strategy for this market is to provide 

periodic communications through meetings with school officials as well as the government access 

channel.  This strategic approach will provide credibility and frequency of communication to our target 

market.  While this market is not the primary focus, sufficient flexibility to handle this secondary market 

is important to producing supplemental revenues.  

Day Cares 

Local Day Care centers in search of field trip alternatives can select the Texarkana Recreational Facility 

as a destination that combines playtime with learning interactions. While this revenue would not be the 

primary focus, its potential could increase revenue base by building strong community relations.  

4.2 Service Business Analysis 

Success will be based on the ability to become known within the community. Texarkana Recreational 

Facility must focus on the specific market segments whose needs match its offerings. Focusing on 

targeted segments is the key to the facility's future.  Therefore, marketing messages will be focused on 

the services offered. We will develop our message, communicate it, and fulfill our commitment to 

excellence. 

5.1 Competitive Edge 

The idea behind the Texarkana recreational facility is not for the facility to be a revenue generator but 

for the facility to offer affordable services and programs to an area that has unmet needs.  The center 

will work in connection with other revenue generating events such as Youth USSSA Softball 

Tournaments that bring citizens outside of Texarkana into our City to spend tax dollars.  For example, 

the City currently host four Youth USSSA Softball Tournaments annually.  This showcase generated the 

below revenue in four days. 

Tournament:

Number 

of Total

Players/ 

Scouts/ 

Coaches:

Number 

of Out of 

Town 

Players/ 

Scouts/ 

Coaches

:

Number of 

Spectators:

Number   of 

Total In 

Attendance

:

Expenditure Per 

Player/Spectator

: (Gas,Shopping, 

Entertainment, 

Food etc.)

Sales 

Tax 

Impact:

Number of 

Total 

Rooms 

(Including 

Multiple 

Nights and 

4 People 

per Room)

Hotel-Motel 

Total:

Hotel Tax 

Impact:

Direct 

Impact:

1100 1100 3850 4950 1,485,000$         18,563$   900 90,000.00$   6,300.00$   $1,575,000Softball 

Showcase 

Tournament:  

June 24th-

26th, Karrh & 

Wallace 

Expenditure Per Player/Spectator (Column F) is based on daily spending of $75.00 (4 Days)

Hotel/Motel Expenditure (Column I) is based on $100.00 per night

Number of Spectators based on 3.5 per Player (Column D)

Team Location: (Column C): Arkansas-Alabama-Colorado-Florida-Louisiana-Mississippi-Oklahoma-Texas                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

Host: Texarkana, Texas

 

47



12 | P a g e  

 

Based on these figures this one event held four times annually will generate approximately $74,252 in 

sales taxes and $25,200 in hotel taxes annually.  Once the recreational facility is operational the City’s 

Recreational Sports Manager will host basketball, football and soccer tournaments.  The projected 

revenue generated for each of these events is estimated to be similar to the tax dollars generated for 

the USSSA Softball Tournaments. 

5.2 Marketing Strategy 

The City’s marketing strategy is focused on establishing our recreational facility brand and promoting 

the facility’s image through a variety of marketing channels.  An overview of our marketing strategy 

includes: 

• Logo & Identity Development. A professional logo will be developed. This brand will be promoted 

through a broad mix of identity pieces including business cards, stationery, car signage, and other 

communications. 

• Partnership Programs. The City will develop community partnerships to offer discounts to the clients 

of other businesses that cater to our target market, such as: 

• Local hospitals which provide birthing classes 

• Local fitness centers without child care 

• Local elementary schools (there are 15 within a 10-mile radius) 

• Pediatrics offices, pediatric dentistry and pediatric orthodontist offices 

• Brochures.  A brochure will be designed to communicate our presence, the services we offer, and 
the clients we serve in the community.   

Flyers.  Flyers will be designed for posting at community locations that attract high traffic volumes of 
consumers within our target market, such as: 

• Local grocery stores and dry cleaners 

• OB/Gyn offices 

• Local child care centers 

• Local children's clothing  

• Local stores that carry children's items (i.e., Target, Wal-Mart, and Kohl's) 

• Local children's  

• Library ~ children's books section 

• Local bookstores ~ children's book section (i.e., Barnes and Noble, and Teachers Tools) 

• Fitness Centers ~ child care area (if they have one) 

Advertising.  Ads will be placed in publications that cater to the demographics of our target market. 

Direct Mail.  Direct mail channels (i.e. city water bill) will be used to initially introduce our presence to 
the community and attract first time visitors. The need for this type of advertising will taper off as 
repeat and referral business increases. 

Website.  All brochures, flyers and other marketing tools will promote our website, detailing our services 
that benefit the community. Our website will also provide all information about us, our operational 
hours, schedules of events, and a registration form for online enrollment. 

Email.  Email will be used to connect with our clients frequently through monthly newsletters and 
updates on upcoming events and special offers. 

48



13 | P a g e  

 

Events.  Special events, including a grand opening and special holiday parties, will be promoted to 

increase visibility in the community and to attract first time or infrequent visitors. 

5.3 Sales Strategy 

The revenue generated through the recreation facility will generate a small portion of what is needed to 

offset the expense of the Section 108 loan repayment.  The recreation facility will make its primary 

profit through the hosting of tournaments such as baseball, softball, basketball and soccer that will 

generate tax dollars for the City. Even though our pricing strategies are set at competitive levels, the City 

expects to gain revenue within the first year by word-of-mouth advertising. The City expects to double 

its clientele every 6 months during the first 18 months after opening the recreational facility.  

The Texarkana Recreational Facility offers a unique solution that will be introduced to the market 

through targeted advertising, direct mail, website optimization and direct sales. The venue provides 

families the ability to enjoy their leisure time participating in activities together or leaving their children 

to participate on their own. 

5.3.1 Sales Forecast 

The strongest revenue during the first quarter of operation will be special event rentals and membership 

fees. Afterwards, word-of-mouth and local advertising will gain market share for the facility, with 

parents using the daily drop-in service, day cares using it as a field trip destination, and monthly holiday-

themed parties. 

We anticipate increasing margins in years two and three, through greater efficiency and facility rentals.   

Sales Forecast  

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 

Sales 

Special Events $13,500  $18,750  $28,625  

Basketball Tournaments $4,500  $6,250  $10,875  

Softball/Baseball Tournaments $22,563  $26,276  $30,504  

Soccer Tournaments $3,000  $4,250  $7,125  

Membership Fee with Sport Activities $15,700  $21,550  $32,325  

Membership Fee $3,000  $4,500  $8,250  

Drop-ins $775  $1,063  $1,694  

Total Sales $63,038  $82,639  $119,398  

Direct Cost of Sales $15,203 $20,963 $27,499 

Total Sales Minus Direct Cost of Sales $47,835 $61,676 $91,899 

 

Web Plan Summary 

The Texarkana Recreational Facility’s website will be the virtual brochure for the facility, as well as its 

online "home." 

49



14 | P a g e  

 

It will showcase the facility’s value proposition and reinforce the qualifications and experience of the 

organization and staff/volunteers, as well as provide a comprehensive overview of the services provided 

to potential and current clients. The site may also provide access to online parent resources and a 

community calendar.  

The key to the website strategy will be combining a very well designed front-end, with a back-end 

capable of collecting contact information for continued communication with those interested in our 

services. 

6.1 Website Marketing Strategy 

The Texarkana Recreational Facility’s website address will be used on all City and promotional materials. 

The website should be used to support all the newly developed messages and should have "active" 

content that brings people back to the site as an information resource. This activity will be supported by 

the marketing plan through the development of newsletters, promotional events, and public relations. 

6.2 Development Requirements 

The Texarkana Recreational Facility’s website will be initially developed in house by the City’s media 

specialist, whom provides creative design and technical development resources. The media specialist 

will create and maintain the website, Texarkana Water Utilities IT Department will host the site and 

provide the technical back end. The City will maintain a simple, user-friendly interface that is fun and 

inviting to our target audience. The website logos and graphics will be consistent with printed 

promotional materials. 

Management Summary 

7.1 Personnel Plan 

As the Personnel Plan shows, the facility expects to make gradual investments in personnel over the 

next three years, always keeping in mind the number of children participating.  In addition to the city 

staff we will need one full-time manager and 6 full-time program workers. 

Personnel Plan  

The City plans to utilize existing staff and partnerships with non-profit organizations to manage and 

operate the facility.  We are in discussions with several non-profit organizations and citizens whom are 

invested in helping to manage and offer services out of the facility. 

Financial Plan 

The recreational facility’s financial plan is based on conservative estimates and assumptions. We plan to 

combine City assets and A & P Funds for start-up requirements and to sustain the business to break-

even, within 8 months to a year. 

 

 

50



15 | P a g e  

 

8.1 Start-up Funding 

Total start-up expenses and assets required will be funded as shown in the Start-up Funding table, 

below. The long-term liabilities will be repaid within 2 years and current borrowing request will be paid 

in 20 years. 

Start-up Funding  

Start-up Expenses to Fund   $64,450   

Start-up Assets to Fund    $884,871   

Total Funding Required   $949,321   

Assets    

Non-cash Assets from Start-up   $517,500   

Cash Requirements from Start-up  $884,871   

Additional Cash Raised    $0   

Cash Balance on Starting Date   $65,000   

Total Assets     $1,467,371   

Liabilities and Capital   

Liabilities   

Current Borrowing   $0   

Long-term Liabilities    $88,250   

Accounts Payable (Outstanding Bills)  $0   

Other Current Liabilities (interest-free)  $8,200   

Total Liabilities     $96,450   

Capital   

Planned Investment        $570,421 

Architectural/Engineering  $50,000   

Building Construction   $800,000   

Additional Investment Requirement  $14,450  

Total Planned Investment   $1,434,871   

Loss at Start-up (Start-up Expenses)  ($64,450)  

Total Capital     $1,370,421  

Total Capital and Liabilities   $1,466,871   

Total Funding     $1,467,371   

8.2 Important Assumptions 

The City assumes steady growth from good management. 

The City is assuming adequate tax dollars and partnerships to sustain it during start-up. 

Program income associated with the proposed project will be available for partial payment of debt 

service. 

General Assumptions  

51



16 | P a g e  

 

As the improvements to both the Ermer Dansby Sports Complex (formerly Hobo Jungle Park) and 

Texarkana Recreational Facility ball fields and concession stands are made the outside sports events will 

continue to grow and generate more revenue for the recreational facility. 

 8.3 Break-even Analysis 

The Break-even Analysis is based on the average of the first-year figures for total sales by units, and by 

operating expenses. These are presented as per-unit revenue, per-unit cost, and fixed costs. These 

conservative assumptions make for a more accurate estimate of real risk. Break-even Analysis  

Monthly Revenue Break-even $3,986.25   

Assumptions:   

Average Percent Variable Cost 47.92%   

Estimated Monthly Fixed Cost $2,516.92   

However, as indicated previously the revenue to aid in paying the Section 108 Loan will not be derived 

from the Texarkana recreational facility itself but from events such as Youth USSSA Softball 

Tournaments that bring citizens outside of Texarkana into our City to spend tax dollars.   

8.4 Projected Profit and Loss 

Pro Forma Profit and Loss Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 

Sales $63,038  $82,639  $119,398  

Direct Cost of Sales $15,203 $20,963 $27,499 

Other Costs of Sales $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

Total Cost of Sales $15,203 $20,963 $27,499 

    

Gross Margin  $47,835 $61,676 $91,899 

Gross Margin % 75.89% 74.64% 76.97% 

    

Expenses    

Payroll (already funded by City not 
included in this project as an expense) 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

Marketing/Promotion $2,200.00 $2,716 $3,454 

Depreciation $50 $100 $300 

Utilities $1,040 $2,202 $3,718 

Insurance $2,150 $2,645 $3,708 

Payroll Taxes (already funded by City not 
included in this project as an expense) 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

Other $1,200 $2,716 $3,454 

Total Operating Expenses $6,640 $10,379 $14,634 

    

Net Profit $41,195 $51,297 $77,265 

Net Profit/Sales 65.35% 62.08% 64.72% 

 

52



17 | P a g e  

 

Rehabilitation of Existing Building Cost Estimate 

The current building is 12,245 sq. ft. The rehab includes 2,380 sq. ft. of additions to the building 

for a total of 14,625 sq. ft. once improvements are complete.  

PROJEC NAME: Rehabilitation of Texarkana Recreational Facility Date:  27-Jul-18

Unit Engineer's Estimate

ITEM # DESCRIPTION Unit Quantity Cost Total

A. Renovation of Existing Building

Exisiting Building SF 12,245 24.00$               293,880.00$                

1 New Floor Finishes @ Existing Gym

2 New Tile Floor @ Activities Area

3 Repaint All Interior Walls

4

Change Out Some Details by Adding Doors & Frames 

as Needed

5 Demolition of Some Interior Walls

6 New Ceilings As Needed

7 New Entry Canopy

8 Infill Some Openings in Walls

Sub-total 293,880.00$                

B. New Construction SF 2380 62.00$              147,560.00$               

1 New Construction Floor/Foundations

2 New Walls/Ceilings

3 New Steal Structural System

4 Membrane Roofing

5 New Restrooms

Sub-total 147,560.00$                

C. Other Improvements

1 Kitchen Equipment LS 1 75,000.00$         75,000.00$                  

2 Roof Repair Gym Area SF 8,000 6.50$                 52,000.00$                  

3 Fire Sprinkler System Existing Building SF 12,245 5.00$                 61,225.00$                  

4 Fire Sprinkler System New Construction SF 2,380 2.00$                 4,760.00$                   

Sub-total 188,225.00$                

D. Air Conditioning (HVAC)

1 Gym - Four 5 Ton Units Ton 20 2,300.00$          46,000.00$                  

2 Other A/C Units Ton 14 2,300.00$          32,200.00$                  

Sub-total 78,200.00$                  

E. Electrical

1 Existing Building SF 12,245 6.00$                 73,470.00$                  

2 New Construction SF 2,380 4.00$                 9,520.00$                   

Sub-total 82,990.00$                  

Sub-total Construction 790,855.00$                

F. Professional Services

1 Engineering Plans & Specifications 31,634.20$                  

2 Bidding Phase Services 2,500.00$                   

3 Construction Administration & Inspection 10,431.38$                  

Sub-total Construction 44,565.58$                  

Total Construction & Professional Services 835,420.58$         

PREPARED BY:  City of Texarkana Public Works Department

216 Walnut Street

Texarkana, AR 71854

870-779-4971

PROBABLE OPINION OF                              

ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION COSTS

Disclaimer:  All costs are only the costs noted herein and subject 

to change in work items, quantities and unit pricing upon bidding.

53



18 | P a g e  

 

 
 

Rendering of Existing Building 

 

 

 

54



19 | P a g e  

 

 

Rendering for Rehabilitation of Existing Building 

55



20 | P a g e  

 

Demolition of Existing Building and Construction of New Facility Cost Estimate 

The existing facility is 12,064 sq. ft. to accomplish the goals the City has listed in this proposal 

the square footage of the new building would be 15,000 sq. ft.  The average cost per sq. ft. for a 

new building is $150 per sq. ft. 

The construction of a new facility would be approximately $2.479 Million. Due to this expense 

and what would be available to the City through the Section 108 Program ($1.172 Million vs. 

$2.479 Million) the City is requesting funding to rehab the existing building. 

PROJEC NAME: Rehabilitation of Texarkana Recreational Facility Date:  27-Jul-18

Unit Engineer's Estimate

ITEM # DESCRIPTION Unit Quantity Cost Total

A. New Construction

1 New Facility Construction SF 15,000 150.00$             2,250,000.00$             

Sub-total 2,250,000.00$             

B.

1

2

Sub-total -$                           

C.

1

2

Sub-total -$                           

D.

1

2

Sub-total -$                           

E.

1

2

Sub-total -$                           

Sub-total Construction 2,250,000.00$             

F. Professional Services

1 Engineering Plans & Specifications 180,000.00$                

2 Bidding Phase Services 2,500.00$                   

3 Construction Administration & Inspection 46,752.40$                  

Sub-total Construction 229,252.40$                

Total Construction & Professional Services 2,479,252.40$      

PREPARED BY:  City of Texarkana Public Works Department

216 Walnut Street

Texarkana, AR 71854

870-779-4971

PROBABLE OPINION OF                              

ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION COSTS

Disclaimer:  All costs are only the costs noted herein and subject 

to change in work items, quantities and unit pricing upon bidding.

 

56



21 | P a g e  

 

Rendering of New Facility 

 

57



22 | P a g e  

 

      
                        Hospitality Room                                                 Activity Room                                                               Kid Zone 

If a new building is constructed the Texarkana Recreation Center will have an all-purpose court for basketball, volleyball and badminton, a 

1/10-mile walking track, Fitness Area, Children's Zone, and Activity Room with kitchenette. 

Whether the existing building is rehabbed, or a new building constructed we look forward to providing a place for year-a-round fitness and 

activities for Texarkana and the surrounding area. 

     
                               Gym                                                               Kid Zone                                                                Fitness Area 

58



23 | P a g e  

 

Exhibit “A” 

 

59



24 | P a g e  

 

Projects That Make the Recreational Facility a Destination Point for Surrounding Neighborhoods  
Earnest Hill Park and George Williams Park Trail Connections 

 

60



25 | P a g e  

 

Seibert Street Trail Connection 

 

61



26 | P a g e  

 

Texarkana Recreational Facility Bridge and Trail Extension  

62



27 | P a g e  

 

Ermer Dansby Pondexter Sports Complex (Formerly Hobo Jungle Park) 

 

63



28 | P a g e  

 

Ermer Dansby Pondexter Sports Complex (Formerly Hobo Jungle Park)  
Bridge and Trail Connection 

 

64



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance authorizing and directing the City Manager to 

purchase police mobile video and audio equipment. (TAPD) Chief Bob 

Harrison 

This ordinance requires an emergency clause due to time constraints 

to place order to receive additional equipment at no charge.  An 

emergency clause requires a separate and distinct vote of the Board 

and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

(Hdbk. Const. Amend 7) 

AGENDA DATE: March 18, 2019 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Police Department 

PREPARED BY: Capt. Bobby Jordan 

REQUEST: Per Purchasing Policy, Board Approval for Purchasing Police Mobile 

Video and Audio Equipment 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: Yes – Waive all competitive bidding due to the time frame constraint of 

placing the order by March 22, 2019 to receive a complete interview 

room system at no charge. 

SUMMARY: Please see attached proposal which includes explanation and justification 

of equipment to be purchased. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $119,410.00 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: Funds to be sourced from assets belonging to TAPD and contributions 

from the Prosecuting Attorney’s Asset Forfeiture funds. 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

Federal JAG Grant for Camera (Federal Justice Assistance Grant money 

awarded to TAPD by the Department of Justice for the purpose of 

purchasing video camera equipment needed in the performance of police 

duties): $11,112.00. 

Equitable Sharing/Drug Seizure. (Drug money seized by Local and 

Federal law enforcement through illicit drug investigations). Line Item 

13024 $20,827.58 

Prosecuting Attorney Asset Forfeiture (Drug money seized by law 

enforcement through illicit drug investigations): $40,000.00. 

Turn Back or Police Reserve Money.  (This money is accumulated 

through insurance payments for vehicles damaged or destroyed in the 

65



performance of providing police services and by the sale of surplus 

police equipment.) Line Item 13009: $23,735.21. 

United States Marshal.  (Money derived from housing United States 

Marshal Service Prisoners in TAPD jail space). Line Item 13010: 

$23,735.21. 

VOCA/VAWA Grant (Justice Assistance Grant is a Federal grant 

awarded to TAPD to combat domestic violence issues): ? 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

With board approval and a purchasing order number in hand prior to 

March 22
nd

, Watch Guard has committed to providing one of the 

Interview room camera and audio systems at no charge.  A value of 

$5,195.00 

EXHIBITS: Ordinance, Proposal letter to the Chief of Police Bob Harrison and 

detailed quote sheets from Watch Guard. 

 

66



ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

AN ORDINANCE WAIVING COMPETITIVE 

BIDDING; AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 

APPROVE A CONTRACT FOR THE PURCHASE OF 

POLICE MOBILE VIDEO AND AUDIO EQUIPMENT; 

FOR DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; AND FOR 

OTHER PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, the video and audio camera systems utilized by the Police Department are 

nearing the end of useful life, are without of all warranty periods and, for some of such systems, 

including the existing body-worn systems, no longer have available manufacturer technical 

support or maintenance; and 

WHEREAS, the type of technical equipment involved is highly specialized and varies by 

provider, use, function capabilities, user requirements, user capabilities, data storage and 

ownership options, and any number of factors that make it impracticable and not feasible to 

compare competitive prospective systems based solely on a traditional competitive bidding 

model; and 

WHEREAS, the Police Department, for approximately 2 months has been field testing 

certain offerings by Watch Guard, one of the two leading companies providing technology and 

service to the law enforcement industry; and 

WHEREAS, the Police Department has determined that the Watch Guard products tested 

offerings are far superior to the current systems in use and better suited (including by 

consideration of specific technological and data storage aspects) to the historical and anticipated 

usage by and procedures of the Police Department; and 

WHEREAS, Watch Guard has submitted a proposal to supply ten (10) in-car and body 

worn camera bundles along with three (3) criminal interview and/or datamaster room 

video/audio recording systems for $119,410.00; and 

WHEREAS, the funds are available and can be sourced in such amounts as acceptable to 

the City Manager from:  The Federal JAG Grand for Cameras, Equitable Sharing/Drug Seizure, 

Asset Forfeiture via the County Prosecuting Attorney’s Office contribution, Turn-back or police 

67



reserve money, United States Marshal Fund and, if hereafter awarded (application pending), a 

VOCA/VAWA Grant; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. §14-47-138, the Board of Directors may waive 

the requirements of competitive bidding in exceptional situations where competitive bidding is 

not feasible; and 

WHEREAS, Section 2-72 of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, Code of Ordinances Sec. 

2-72, recognizes that, “in situations involving highly specialized equipment or professional 

services . . . , publicly advertised requests for bids may not be practical . . . .[,]” and provides 

that, “[i]n these cases, proposals may be requested from selected firms specializing in the 

particular good or service[;]” and 

WHEREAS, for the reasons set out above it is not feasible or practicable to engage in 

competitive bidding and, moreover, Watch Guard effectively constitutes the sole source of the 

unique technical product selected to meet the Police Department’s needs; and    

WHEREAS, in consideration of and for the reasons set forth above, the City Manger, the 

Police Department and staff request that any competitive bidding practices be waived as 

permitted and the Board approve the purchase of the equipment described above;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the City of 

Texarkana, Arkansas, that: 

Section 1: The competitive bidding practices contemplated by applicable law and 

ordinance are waived and the City Manager is authorized to enter into a contract for the purchase 

of the equipment and for the price described and set forth above, with funds coming from the 

sources so indicated in amounts approved such as to constitute, in the aggregate, the total cost of 

such equipment.   

Section 2: This action being necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health 

and safety (including the need to commence acquisition and installation of current video and 

audio equipment and, further, to take advantage of certain savings offered by Watch Guard and 

which are reflected in the price above), and a separate and distinct vote having been taken on this 

emergency clause, an emergency is therefore declared to exist, and this ordinance shall be in full 

force and effect from and after its passage and approval. 

68



PASSED AND APPROVED this 18
th

 day of March, 2019. 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

________________________________ 

George M. Matteson, City Attorney 

69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78


	Top
	1. March 4, 2019 minutes
	03182019_ccd_minutes.docx
	03042019_minutes.docx

	2. Three Quarter Ton Crew Cab Purchase
	03182019 Three Quarter Ton Crew Cab Truck.docx
	item_2_03182019_Resolution_Crew Cab Truck.doc
	bid ad.pdf
	mclarty ford bid.pdf
	coleman motors bid.pdf

	3. Section 108 Loan Application
	item_3_03182019_pw_ Section 108 Loan Application.docx
	item_3_03182019_Section 108_Resolution.doc
	item_3_HUD Regional Office Little Rock Review Email.pdf
	Texarkana Recreational Facility Section 108 Proposal.pdf

	4. TAPD audio video equipment
	03182019_tapd_audio video equip.docx
	item_4_ord_TAPD_Ordinance.doc
	03182019_tapd_audio video equip.pdf

	Bottom

